M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 07, 2001
9: 07 AM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 32, Side A
SFC 01 # 32, Side B
SFC 01 # 33, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approxinmately 9:07 AM
PRESENT

Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senator Loren Lenan

Al so Attending: KEVIN BROKS, Director, Dvision of Adm nistrative
Servi ces, Depar t nent of Fish and Gane; M CHAEL NI ZI CH,

Adm nistrative Director, D vision of Admnistrative Services,

Ofice of the Governor; GAIL FENUM Al, El ection Program Speci ali st,

Division of Election, Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor; REMOND
HENDERSON, Director, Division of Adm ni strative Services,

Department of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent; JANET CLARKE,

Director, Division of Admnistrative Services, Department of Health
& Soci al Services; MATT ANDERSON, Energency Medical Services Unit

Manager, Conmmunity Health Program Department of Health and Soci al

Servi ces

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

SB 29 - APPROP: GOVERNOR S CAPI TAL BUDGET

The Comm ttee heard presentations fromthe Departnent of Fish and
Game, the Ofice of the Governor, the Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent, and the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces on specific budget requests.

#sb29

SFC- 01 (1) 03/ 07/ 01



SENATE BI LL NO. 29

"An Act making capital appropriations and capitalizing funds;
maki ng appropriations under art. |IX, sec. 17(c), Constitution
of the State of Alaska, fromthe constitutional budget reserve
fund; and providing for an effective date."

Department of Fish and Gane

KEVIN BROOKS, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Fish and Gane, inforned the Commttee that the dozen
capi tal budget projects he is presenting total approximately $15.5
mllion. He said that of this total ampunt, $13.2 mllion, or 85
percent, are federal funds and approximately $1.575 mllion, or 10
percent, are general funds.

Statewi de Facilities Repair, Miintenance, and Repl acenent
$500, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 30128

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Deferred M ntenance

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

This project wll provide for repair, nmaintenance and
renovation of departnent facilities statew de.

On- goi ng proj ect

M. Brooks inforned the Commttee this capital budget project is an
annual request to fund nmaintenance and repairs on facilities
rangi ng from bunkhouses to warehouses to |aboratories, in over
forty locations throughout the state. He commented that the
Departnment of Fish and Gane has identified approximately $3 mllion
of deferred mai ntenance needs and these projects are the portion of
those projects identified for this fiscal year

Vessel and Aircraft Repair, Mintenance and Repl acenent
$600, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 30129

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Renovation and Renodel i ng

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2000 - 06/ 30/2005

This project will provide funding to maintain the departnent’s
research vessels and aircraft, which are used to support

SFC- 01 (2) 03/ 07/ 01



fishery monitoring efforts and stock assessnent prograns.
Mai nt enance work to be done includes replacing the gensets,
sandbl ast and paint, overhaul engines, general yard work and
i nspection, and replacing fishing gear and aircraft manual s.
Addi tional funding in FY2002 will be used to replace the RV
Sundance, along with revenues generated fromthe sale of the
vessel

On- goi ng proj ect

M. Brooks stated the Departnent has five large vessels and a
nunber of aircraft involved primarily in the D vision of Comerci al
Fisheries. He stressed the inportance of keeping these crafts in
good, safe working order for the protection of the Departnent’s
enpl oyees.

M. Brooks informed that $300,000 of this $600, 000 request is to
purchase a used vessel to replace an existing vessel, the Sundance.
He noted these specified general funds would be conbined with the
proceeds generated fromthe sale of the Sundance for this purchase.
He shared that the Departnment has conpl eted survey work on meking
the necessary repairs to the Sundance and has determ ned that the
cost of repairs exceeds the benefits.

Senator Hoffrman inquired as to the anticipated total cost of
repl acenent.

M. Brooks responded that the Departnent anticipates conbining
$300, 000 general funds with approxinmately $250,000 expected from
the sale of the Sundance to purchase a replacenent vessel in the
price range of between $500, 000 and $600, 000. He inforned that the
costs to make repairs on the Sundance woul d exceed $600, 000.

Senat or Green asked where the Sundance is depl oyed.
M. Brooks replied the Sundance is stationed in Southeast Al aska.

Dock Repair, Maintenance & Repl acenent Phase 2

$300, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 6916

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Deferred M ntenance

Category: Health/Safety

Location: King Sal non

Election District: Al eutians

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

The FY2001 Cl P Budget provided $250.0 of a requested $375.0
for repair, maintenance and replacenent of waterfront
facilities at the Departnment’s King Salnon facility. Phase |

SFC- 01 (3) 03/ 07/ 01



funding will conplete the King Sal non project and begi n work
on the Cordova dock
Phased proj ect

M. Brooks reported that Phase One of this project began in FY 01
He infornmed that the Departnent has identified docks in Cordova,
King Sal non and Petersburg as needing significant repair.

Bl ack River Sonar — Chignik area, Upper Al eutian Peninsula
$175, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 34004

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Pl anning

Cat egory: Natural Resources

Location: Kodi ak

Election District: Kodiak

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

This CP will purchase nodern split-beam side-scanning sonar
(SSS) equipnent and provide for technical assistance with
final site selection and training. Direct enuneration of
salnmon mgrating up the Black River, in addition to the
exi sting counting weir in the Chignik River, is the only way
to accurately distinguish the relative escapenent of the two
runs of sockeye to the Chignik system Sonar provides a
technically feasible and advanced nethod for such enuneration,
and avoids many of the staffing, logistic and naintenance
difficulties of constructing and operating a separate weir in
this renote | ocation.

One tinme project

M. Brooks said the Chignik River is “referred to as an indicator
stream” He stated there is currently a weir on the river and the
addi tion of sonar equi pnent woul d enabl e the Departnent to better
manage the river’s significant sockeye sal non runs.

Co-Chair Kelly inquired if the current system being used is
deficient.

M. Brooks replied that the weir system is not deficient and
actual ly does a good job, but because there are two separate sal non
runs on the river, the addition of sonar equipnent in a |ocation
downstream fromthe weir, would all ow the Departnment to nonitor the
stocks at two different |locations. He informed this would enable
bi ol ogists to do a better job of distinguishing between the two
runs and nonitoring the fish stocks.

Co-Chair Kelly asked for verification that the Chignik River is a
“huge fishery.”

SFC- 01 (4) 03/ 07/ 01



M. Brooks replied that it is. He told the Conmttee the Departnent
had installed a simlar systemon the Copper R ver the prior year,
and the weir/sonar system has been helpful in determning the
harvests taken on the river between the two points and how quickly
the fish nove up the river

Senat or Austerman noted this project is in the election district of
Kodi ak and asked if the Chignik project is managed from Kodi ak.

M. Brooks replied that it is.

Senat or Austerman conmented that Chignik is not part of the Kodiak
el ection district.

M. Brooks replied that is correct, but it is a practical matter to
manage Chi gni k out of Kodi ak.

M. Brooks stated that of the twelve projects being presented, only
four projects require general funds.

Sport Fishing and Recreational Boating Public Access and
Facility Devel opnent
$1, 600, 000

$1, 200, 000 Federal Receipts

$400, 000 Fi sh/ Gane
Ref erence No.: 30432
AP/ AL: Appropriation
Proj ect Type: Construction
Cat egory: Devel opnent
Location: Statew de
El ection District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006
This project provides authority to the Division of Sport Fish
to receive federal funding for construction of boating and
sport fishing access facilities throughout the state. The
Federal Aid to Sport Fish Restoration Act requires that 15% of
the federal funds available to Sport Fish be used for public
boati ng access devel opnent. Federal funds are matched with a
25% contri bution of Fish and Gane funds to the total project
cost.
On- goi ng proj ect

M. Brooks informed the Committee this annual project request
fulfills the federal aid program requirenent that the Departnent
set aside 15 percent of the allocated funds for public access
proj ects.

SFC- 01 (5) 03/ 07/ 01



M. Brooks supplied copies of the public access projects to the
Committee.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if these funds would revert back to the
federal government if not used.

M . Brooks responded that they would, but clarified that the state
has three years to use the funds before that would occur. He
continued that Al aska, California, and Texas receive the maxi num
federal funding allowed for these types of projects because of the
states’ |arge sizes.

M. Brooks commented that the federal funds for the follow ng four
sal non research projects have been appropriated to the state as the
result of efforts of United States Senator Stevens to address
specific fishery concerns. M. Brooks inforned that each of these
projects has operating conponents, but the Departnent has
determned it is inportant to establish three to five year plans
W th these funds because of the inportance of devel oping |ong-term
fish stock research; therefore, these projects have been
established in the capital budget. He continued that another reason
the funding is in the capital budget is because the Departnent
m ght not receive equal funding increnents that would fit easily
into the operating budget; therefore, the funds are reflected as a
| ump sum

Norton Sound Sal non Research Initiatives

$5, 000, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 33999

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Pl anning

Cat egory: Natural Resources

Location: None

El ection District: Nome, Lower Yukon

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

The Federal Governnent will provide the departnent funding for
research in the Norton Sound region to investigate managenent
i ssues and declining sal non populations in this area.
One-tinme project

M. Brooks informed that Norton Sound has “very denonstrated
failures in sone fisheries.” He inforned that coho, pink, and chum
sal non stocks have been depressed, and the Departnent needs a
better understanding of what is causing this to occur. He stressed
there has not been general funds available to devote to the study
of this area, and these federal funds woul d enabl e the Depart nent
to do the necessary research

SFC- 01 (6) 03/ 07/ 01



Co-Chair Kelly asked if the operating portion of this request is
al so federal funds.

M. Brooks replied yes, it is federal. He stated that any staffing
positions involved in this research would be reflected in the
oper ati ng budget.

Senat or Hof f man asked for clarification that this work i s research
W thout any restoration efforts of any stocks.

M. Brooks detailed the nine conponents of the research work and
cited these components include such things as out-mgration and
survival nunbers. He stressed this information would assist the
Department in its goal of “restoring those stocks to a strength
wher e peopl e can go back out and fish them?”

Senat or Hof frman asked M. Brooks for a tineline in getting the
stocks strong enough to support a renewed fishery.

M. Brooks responded that this five-year $5 nmillion research
project would provide the Departnment enough tinme to devel op good
information regarding the various fisheries in the region from
“streamto out-mgration to getting sone returns back.”

Senator Hoffrman stated if there is no fishery restoration to the
present stocks during this tineframe, “it is conceivable that the
people up in Norton Sound region nmay not see chum sal non since the
life is about three years, for eight to ten years from now.”

M. Brooks replied that he could not really respond to that as the
focus of this project is to give the Departnent the information
needed to find out what it going on with the fishery. He continued
that if the fishery reaches sustainable yields, it would be opened
back up to commercial fisheries. He said that the Departnent shares
the sane concerns as those of Senator Hoffman.

Senator W/l ken stressed that the results of this $5 mllion project
be pertinent and useful. He also noted the |ack of involvenent of
any fish research conmponent of the University of Al aska and asked
how t he University mght be involved in the project.

Senator Wl ken cited the need for the Departnment to provide the
Committee a pro forma defining what the end product is going to be
in each of the nine conponents detailed in this request as well as
what the staffing, equipnent needs, and structures woul d be before
t he project begins.

Senator Green inquired if any of the work detailed in the Norton

SFC- 01 (7) 03/ 07/ 01



Sound Sal non Environnental Baseline Mnitoring section of the
sunmary is currently being done by another state or federal agency,
and if that work m ght be “farned out to sonebody.”

M. Brooks stated that normally the Departnent would use existing
expertise; however, he reiterated, Norton Sound is an area that
“has not been the recipient of a lot of the effort.”

M. Brooks continued that an inportant part of juvenile sal non
survival is water flow fromsnowrelt and runoff, and the Depart nent
has some of this information available in the its Habitat D vision.
He inforned that other sources al so have useful information, and he
stressed that the Departnent is not looking to replicate other
Departnments’ efforts.

M. Brooks, responding to previous comments about the invol venent
of the University of Alaska, stated the Departnent does
col |l aborative projects wth the University and wuses the
University’'s fisheries expertise often. He continued that the
project in Norton Sound is in cooperation with the |ocal Native
groups, the Bering Sea Fisherman’s Association, Norton Sound
Econom ¢ Devel opnment Council and other people in the area.

M. Brooks informed that the Departnent has negotiated an overhead
rate of approximately 10 percent with the federal governnent and as
a rule, charges 6 percent on federal contracts even though the rate
could be higher. He stressed that the Departnent strives to keep
overhead rates to a mnimal in order to have nost of the funding go
to the research project.

M. Brooks said the equipnment replacenents referred to in the
sumary include “such things as wear and tear on a weir or on a
skiff or on an engine.” He said the Departnent would provide a |ist
of equipnent itens to the Commttee.

Senator WIken comented that M. Brooks acknow edged the
University has “a repository of know edge” but it does not appear
that the University is involved in this project.

M. Brooks responded that he does not know the specifics of the
University’ s invol venent, and he would | ook into this.

Senator W I ken responded that it would be “perfectly appropriate”
to have the University’'s research abilities used to the “maxi mum
extent.”

Senator Austerman voiced that all research projects conducted by
the Department of Fish and Gane and the University of Al aska shoul d

SFC- 01 (8) 03/ 07/ 01



be anal yzed to see what projects could be coordinated.

M. Brooks stated there has been “a |l ot of focus on research this
session,” and he agreed it is a “real and inportant issue.” He
comment ed; however, that it would take a full-tinme person to track
all the projects that are going on and the question is “are we
going to spend our resources tracking projects or doing the work.”
He concurred that the Departmnment does not want to “duplicate work
and wants to “address the gaps that occur,” but the process needs
to be “done in a manner that would not take away fromthe research
efforts.” He said the Departnment would put together a list of the
projects it is conducting, and he detailed the variety of projects
t hat have received research grants.

Senator Green noted that the fourth paragraph on page 15 of the
project summary states “this research initiative be funded for a
mnimum of five years and consideration then be given to
continuation in order to acquire a neaningful information
baseline.” She asked if this nmeans this project would be continuing
after the initial five years outlined in this request, and if so
what fundi ng based woul d be i npl enent ed.

M. Brooks responded that the Departnent does not do any of these
projects with the expectation of using general funds, but rather
the Departnent uses a “project-based budget with start, end and
conpl ete dates.” He continued that at the end of five years, if the
Departnment found nore informati on was needed, the Departnent woul d
submit a proposal to the federal governnent or to “this Conmttee
if the project were pressing enough.”

M. Brooks insisted the Departnent “does not want to give anyone
the inpression this is as ongoing project,” and affirmed there are
no plans for additional funding in five years. He stated this
wordi ng was an “attenpt to fully disclose possibilities that could
result fromthis effort and not a prerequisite that there would be
pl ans for additional funding in five years.”

Senat or Hof f man conment ed he believes that part of the purpose of
this federal grant is to provide |local hire, and, at the same tine,
use the research to help get the commercial fishery stocks
“sufficiently reestablished” to provide for long-termjobs for the
people in Norton Sound. He stated this is the reasoning behind his
earlier questions about the restoration of stocks in the region.

Near shore Fi sheries Research and Assessnent
$1, 798, 100 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 34003

AP/ AL: Appropriation

SFC- 01 (9) 03/ 07/ 01



Proj ect Type: Pl anning

Cat egory: Natural Resources

Location: Southeast Al aska

El ection District: Districts 1-6

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

These funds will enable the Departnment of Fish and Gane to
conduct stock assessnents and biol ogi cal research needed to
devel op fishery managenent plans that provide for sustainable
fisheries on previously unexploited r |lightly-exploited
st ocks. Funds cover reconnai ssance surveys on relatively
unexpl oi ted nearshore resources such as geoduck cl ans, bl ack
rockfish, sea cucunbers, and sea urchins. Fundi ng al so
i nvestigates key productivity paranmeters needed to sustain on-
going fisheries such as shrinp, Dungeness crab, scallop, and
ot her nearshore resources.

One-time project

M. Brooks voiced this is the second year the Departnment has
received federal funds, again with the assistance of Senator
Stevens, to develop fisheries in the one to three mle zone
nearshore fisheries areas. These fisheries usually “involve snall
boats and target species that haven't been exploited in the past
such as shrinp and scal |l ops.”

Senator Austerman reaffirmed that this was the second year of this
program

M. Brooks responded yes.

Senat or Austerman asked if a report was avail able detailing how the
first year funding had been used and the project results.

M. Brooks responded the Departnent could provide year to date
reports regarding the first year funding efforts.

Senat or Austerman declared that the Legi sl ature has been addressing
the nearshore fishery situation for six years, and he felt there is
a need, especially going into the second year of these studies, to
see what the overall picture is.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked this has been a concern of Senator
Austerman’s for quite sone tine.

M. Brooks acknow edged what Senator Austernman was saying and
stated that if the Departnment does not know what the stocks are, it
“coul d not responsibly open up a fishery.” He said the “Departnent
has not, until recently, been able to get funds to conduct the
necessary projects,” but these federal funds would enable themto

SFC-01 (10) 03/07/01



proceed. He said the project is a “response to sone of those pleas
to get nore information on this type of fishery so that people can
get out and harvest sone of these fisheries.” He stressed this
project is “part and parcel of the bigger picture” the Departnent
is trying to acconplish

Snow Crab Fishery Disaster Research

$1, 000, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 34000

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Pl anning

Cat egory: Natural Resources

Location: Kodi ak

El ection District: Kodiak

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

These funds will assist the Departnment of Fish and Gane to
col | ect nmuch-needed biological information on the Bering Sea
snow crab stock that declined sharply in the past few years.
Results will be integrating both into nodeling studies to
understand stock fluctuations and i nto new nmanagenent plans to
foster stock rebuilding and reduced chances of future
col | apses.

One-tinme project

M. Brooks inforned that the Bering Sea snow crab fishery has
declined dramatically in the past few years. He noted that the
“crab fishery is technically managed by the federal governnent,”
but the state works coll aboratively with the federal governnment in
the nearshore areas. He stated the Departnent receives these
federal funds to conplenent the federal troll surveys in order to
better determ ne how the crab stocks are doing. He continued that
t he Department uses these funds to address sone of the research and
information gaps wth the goal of managi ng a sustai nable yield.

Senat or Austerman stated that fisheries have cycles and that the
habi tual | abeling of declining stocks as “di sasters” does not seem
appropri ate.

Co-Chair Kelly agreed that the use of the term “disasters” is
becom ng popul ar, and he detailed several exanples of situations
being referred to as di sasters.

Senator G een asked if the wording on page 20 of the summary
information is to establish how the Departnent would be working
with the different entities to gather pertinent information or if
it is to develop a spending plan with those groups.

M. Brooks responded that the Departnent is “looking at a three-

SFC-01 (11) 03/07/01



year project working with these groups to acconplish the project.”

Senator Geen acknow edged that the summary specified the
Departnment woul d be working with the various groups “to acconplish
the projects.”

M. Brooks addressed Senator Austerman’s comment on fishery
“cycles” and stressed the Departnment is aware of the different
cycles for different fisheries, but expressed that snow crabs are
experienci ng sone serious problens beyond a cyclical event.

Senat or Aust erman asked how many snow crab biol ogists the state of
Al aska has.

M. Brooks replied that he would supply that information to Senator
Aust er man.

Senat or Austerman noted that nost of the snow crab fishery is
conducted outside of the three-mle limt in federal waters,
al t hough the state of Al aska has accepted responsibility for those
fisheries. He reiterated that it would be interesting to know how
many biol ogists have been working on snow crab projects, and
commented that by labeling the decline a ‘disaster’, the state is
able to get federal funds.

Senator W/ ken asked for confirmation that this mllion dollar
t hree-year project would not “roll into a general fund project.”

M. Brooks confirnmed this is a three-year project. He disclosed
that the Departnment is currently experiencing a shortage of
bi ol ogi st s.

Co-Chair Kelly expressed support for the Departnment of Fish and
Ganme’ s project-based budget approach.

Senat or Hof fman asked if there is a plan for how to rebuild the
snow crab stocks.

M. Brooks responded that the “intent of this project is to cone up
with a plan” to offset the “boom and bust” cycles that is
experienced in these fisheries.

Senator Austerman remarked that the Departnent of Fish and Gane
received a |lot of state funding for research before and during the
days of oil revenues, but as oil revenues declined, general funds
for the Departnent of Fish and Game budget were cut. He opined this
is “reflected in the inability of the Departnment to nanage its
fisheries.” He continued that now that the Departnent of Fish and

SFC-01 (12) 03/07/01



Gane is starting to get federal dollars for research, these funds
woul d enable the Departnent to begin conducting sonme of the
necessary research the fisheries need.

Log Transfer Facility Research and Renedi ation

$700, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 34113

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Pl anning

Cat egory: Natural Resources

Location: Sout heast Al aska

Election District: Districts 1-6

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

This project wll identify the feasibility of restoring
priority Log Transfer Facility sites. This project wll
assess estuarine and nearshore nmari ne habitats where bark has
accunulated at |og transfer and probable restoration
t echni ques.

One-tinme project

M. Brooks infornmed that these federal funds would enable the
Departnment to conduct research in estuaries and nearshore habitats
where bark is deposited. He said the research is to provide
information on ways to renediate those sites by such nethods as
dredgi ng or capping the deposits in order to foster devel opnent of
resi dent speci es.

Wl dlife Habitat Managenment in Interior Al aska

$100, 000 Fi sh/ Game

Ref erence No.: 33994

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Renewal and Repl acenent

Category: Natural Resources

Location: Fairbanks Areaw de

Election District: Fairbanks Areaw de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

| mprove habitat quality for wldlife through the use of
prescribed fires, felling of mature aspen and birch groves,
and thinning of trees in mature forest to pronote re-
vegetation. Past wildland fire suppression efforts, current
fire protection needs near valuable properties, and relatively
nodest tinber harvests have resulted in reduced anmounts and
distribution of early to md-growh forest which are essenti al
conponents of diverse productive wildlife habitats. Projects
usi ng these habitat enhancenment activities have been conducted
and/ or planned for Thomas Bay (north of Petersburg), Trapper
Creek (Pal ner Area), Tanana Fl ats (Fairbanks area), and Nenana
Ri dge (ruffed grouse project).

SFC-01 (13) 03/07/01



On- goi ng project

M. Brooks stated this project involves Departnment of Fish and Gane
funds to pronote npbose habitat with the primary tool being
prescri bed burns.

Equi prment Repl acenment for WIldlife Conservation Prograns
$100, 000 Fi sh/ Gane

Ref erence No.: 33995

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Equi pnent

Cat egory: Natural Resources

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

Wldlife Conservation has deferred needed equipnent
repl acenent and mai ntenance for several years in order to nore
fully fund managenent and research prograns necessary for
responsi bl e resource nanagenent. Division staff are now
utilizing outdated and inadequate equipnent. |In sone cases
this outdated equi pnent is no |onger safe or reliable under
normal field use. Equi prent to be purchased includes two
boat/ nmotor conbinations (Petersburg and the statew de
wat erf oWl nanagenent program), three snowrachi nes (Bethel
Barrow and MG ath), and one repl acenent 4x4 pickup truck for
t he Sol dotna offi ce.

On- goi ng proj ect

M. Brooks relayed this project is a scheduled equipnent
repl acenent for sone “antiquated equi pnent” such as snow machi nes,
boat and notor conbinations, and other standard equipnent the
Depart nent uses.

Kat chemek Bay Research Reserve Facilities Design and
Construction

$3, 500, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: 6388

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Construction

Cat egory: Devel opnent

Location: Honer

Election District: Honer

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

Final phase of construction of research and education
facilities for the Kachemak Bay National Estuarine Research
Reserve.

Phased proj ect

SFC-01 (14) 03/07/01



M. Brooks infornmed this is the third and final phase of this
federally funded “good” project.

Senat or Austernman asked about the extent of the freshwater research
the facility would be conducti ng.

M. Brooks replied that this facility would be located in an
estuarine coastal environment where you would have sone
freshwat er/sal twater m xture.

Senator Austerman inquired if beluga whale research would be
conducted at this facility.

M. Brooks responded that beluga whale research would not be
conducted at this facility; however, other Departnent of Fish and
Ganme projects do address that research

Ofice of the Governor

Paci fic Sal non Treaty

$18, 000, 000 Federal Receipts

Ref erence No.: AMD33647

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Planning

Category: Devel opnent

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

The federal fiscal year 2000 (FYOOQO) appropriations |egislation
established a Pacific Coastal Salnon Recovery Fund and
appropriated a total of $58 mllion for the states of Al aska
( Sout heast Sust ai nabl e Sal nron Fund), Washi ngton, O egon and
California, as well as the treaty fishing tribes in the
Pacific Northwest. Coordination of the fund is through the
respective Governor’s offices. The Al aska portion of the
federal FYOO appropriation was $14 mllion and is expected to
be $18 million in federal FYO1

On- goi ng proj ect

M. Brooks stated this federal noney has been designated for four
Paci fic states; Washington, Oregon, California and Al aska, as well
as sone Northwest treaty tribes to help establish prograns to
addr ess endangered species concerns. He informed that prior funds
of this nature assisted such projects as the Crystal Lake Hatchery.
He continued that the noney is geared toward “sustai nabl e sal non
stocks as they migrate throughout this range along the four states
on the West Coast.”

SFC-01 (15) 03/07/01



Co-Chair Kelly asked what the goal of this funding is.

M . Brooks responded that the purposes of the funds are for sal non
habitat restoration, sal non stock enhancenent, sal non research and
i npl enentation of the Pacific salnon treaty.

Co-Chair Kelly asked why this project is in the governor’s budget
and not in the Departnent of Fish and Ganme budget.

M. Brooks responded that it is in the governor’s budget because at
the federal level, it is being referred to as “the governors fund”.
He continued that the fund coul d have cone through the Departnent
of Fish and Gane budget; however, because of the breadth of the
focus and to be consistent with the federal directive, it is
submtted in the governor’s budget.

Senator Hoffman commented this project’s detail information
specifies the establishnment of an Al aska marine sci ence endowrent.
He asked if any of these dollars are going to this endowent or if
it is just a concept.

M. Brooks replied he is not aware of any of these funds being
desi gnated for an endownent, but he would confirm that for the
Committee.

Senat or Austerman stated this project should be in the Departnent
of Fish and Gane budget. He read fromthe project’s “Benchmarks for
application of the salnon fund in State fiscal year 2002” section
that includes seven itens such as anending the state-federal
Menor andum of Under st andi ng on Sal non Research

SFC 01 # 32, Side B 09:54 AM

Senat or Austerman questioned what the project’s request for $18
mllion would be used for since “only two of these seven nmjor

i ssues” specifies any significant expenditure of funds. He
stressed he would like to see nore of these types of reports as
they clearly specify how noney’s would be spent, in addition to

detailing an overall plan.

Senator Austerman reiterated the need to manage all the research
dollars that come into the state and coordinate the various
prograns between different state entities. He continued that it
m ght take one full-tine person to figure out how many mllions of
research dollars are being invested in the state. He voiced
frustration that no one could tell the Legislators whether any of

SFC-01 (16) 03/07/01



t hese funds are being coordi nat ed.

M. Brooks voiced agreenent that this is a significant anmount of
noney for research, and it should be coordinated between the
University and other state and federal departnents. He comrented
that the departnments should be coordinating with each other and not
duplicating efforts. He stressed that the Departnent strives to
approach the expenditure of these kinds of funds in a thoughtful
manner and address the nost pressing needs. He noted the Depart nment
could do a presentation to the Cormittee to talk about setting in
pl ace a conprehensi ve approach designed to address projects so that
“we know and you know what is going on, who' s doing what in regards
to research, how it all fits together” and other conponents that
pertain to a project.

Senator Austerman reiterated the inportance of having detailed
pl ans before a project begins so that |egislators know what is
going on. He stated there should be a breakdown for future projects
as well as a summary on the FY 01 $14 nmillion federal research
noney.

M. Brooks clarified that the $14 mllion was actually for this
year. He stated that the first requirenent of the FY 01 funds was
the establishnment of a menorandum of understandi ng (MOU) between
the state and federal entities. He stated this MU did not require
a lot of time and noney, but was a necessary first step. He
detailed several itens in the project that were required by federal
| anguage pertaining to such things as habitat and restoration of
fisheries stocks. He infornmed that these steps are just now com ng
together and the research would be starting with the upcom ng
season. He stated this phase of the project is setting the
necessary benchmark for how the $18 million FY 02 funds will be
used.

Co-Chair Kelly comented that Senator Austerman has asked sone
i nportant questions, and even though these are federal funds, the
project should be |ooked at closely in order to understand the
overall picture. He stated that any information the Departnent
could supply the Commttee woul d be appreciated.

Senat or Austerman asked M. Brooks to provide a financial report
detailing receipts and expenditures of the FY 01 budget in order
for the Conmttee to have a “better feel for what is really going
on.” He stated he would prefer a financial report rather than a
ver bal i zation

M. Brooks responded that he would provide a to-date financial
report to each nmenber

SFC-01 (17) 03/07/01



Senator Green noted it is inportant to look at the itens that are
in Departnent of Fish and Gane’s budget, but it is also inportant
“to notice what is not in it.” She detailed that there are vast
areas of the state not getting any noney for research or sonar
equi pnent. She acknow edged that federal funds conme with clearly
defined areas of use, but she feels there is a “great om ssion” of
itens in the overall balance of the budget.

Co-Chair Kelly comented this mght be because of a small $100
mllion general fund capital budget as well as the federal fund
directives.

M. Brooks commented that nost of the federal funds go toward
projects around Coastal comunities; however the Departnent of Fish
and Gane has designated $45 to $50 mllion operating budget funds
on sport fishing and wildlife prograns in other areas.

Senator Austerman commented the funds for this project are
specifically given to Southeast Al aska because of the Canadian
treaty. He stated that the Departnment of Fish and Gane needs to
focus on the loss of habitat in the Mat-Su valley caused by the
popul ation growmh in that area. He stressed that the Legislature
and the Departnent of Fish and Ganme need to address the Mat-Su
situation as the loss of habitat is getting to a critical point.

Senat or Lenman supported Senator Austerman’s comments, and that the
purpose of these funds is to address the salnon returns in the
Paci fic Northwest.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed that Senator G een was not inplying that
the state use these federal funds differently, but that her
comments were to address the need to direct state funds to other
areas of the state. He commented that when the state approves a
“capital budget that is too small, we are not, as a state,
directing the dollars the way we want to, we’'re relying on the
federal governnment and other prograns to direct our noney where
they want to.”

AccuVot e System — Paynent 4 of 6

$387, 789 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 6712

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Information Systens

Category: Public Support Technol ogy/ Service
Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2004

SFC-01 (18) 03/07/01



The Division of Elections purchased the new statew de vote
tabul ati on system AccuVote, with a six-year |ease purchase
pl an. The paynents began in FY1999 and continue through
FY2004. This request is for the systemis fourth annual
paynent .

Phased proj ect

Expansi on of AccuVote El ections System

$298, 600 General Fund

Ref erence No.: AMD34852

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Project Type: Equi pnent

Category: Public Support Technol ogy/ Servi ce

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001-06/30/2006

Purchase 44 AccuVote units and essential conponents to provide
early voting units where needed, additional units for split
preci ncts, and automate an additional 23 hand-count precincts,
for a total 302 el ectronic AccuVote tabulation precincts.
One-Ti me project

Amendmnent

M CHAEL NI ZICH, Admnistrative Director, D vision of Admnistrative
Services, Ofice of the Governor, informed the Conmttee that in
1998, the Division of Elections purchased the automated vote
tabul ati on system called AccuVote on a six-year |ease purchase
plan. He said this request reflects the fourth annual paynent for
that system

Senator Green asked if there is any federal assistance to help
recoup any of these costs.

GAI L FENUM Al, El ection Program Specialist, Division of Elections,
O fice of the Lieutenant Governor, replied that several plans deal
with election reform and sone involve federal matching grant
progranms. She stated that she is not sure if any of the plans are
retroactive. She continued that the Division would watch for any
federal funding opportunity to further the disbursenent of the
AccuVot e system t hroughout the state.

Senat or Hof f man asked how nany areas of the state would have the
AccuVot e system by the end of FY 04.

Ms. Fenum ai responded that if the additional units included in

this funding request were approved, approxi mately 304 precincts out
of 451 woul d have the AccuVote system

SFC-01 (19) 03/07/01



Co-Chair Kelly asked if this coverage is the Departnent’s goal or
woul d addi tional funding be requested.

Ms. Fenumi ai stated this request phases in another 23 precincts;
however, it would be good to have nore.

Co-Chair Kelly stated he did not think “the state woul d ever have
AccuVote in every region.” He inquired what the “cut off point” is.

Ms. Fenumi ai replied that the Division does not have a definite
plan as to where it would stop. She stated that the D vision wuld
like to increase the nunber of systens in the communities where
there is cooperation from the city clerks’ offices because the
Division relies on the city clerks to store, maintain and test the
units when not in use. She summarized that the AccuVote systens
woul d be under annual review to nonitor popul ation statistics and
voter turnout.

Co-Chair Kelly suggested the Division work on projecting what the
distribution goal mght be, as it would be a good thing to know. He
added this informati on m ght be “good justification” for this sort
of request.

Ms. Fenum ai responded that the Division would work on a plan.

Senat or Hof fman asked for a by-year sunmary of which precincts
woul d be getting the AccuVote system

M. Nizich responded that information would be supplied to the
Committee.

Senat or Austerman asked if the Division could provide further
details regarding the total nunber of precincts having the AccuVote
system

Ms. Fenum ai explained that currently 281 precincts out of 481 use
this automated system and the remaining 170 precincts do hand
counts. This project will allow an additional 23 precincts to
convert from hand counting to the automated system bringing the
total nunber to 304.

Anericans with Disabilities Act Conpliance Projects
$500, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 6391

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Renovation and Renodeling

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

SFC-01 (20) 03/07/01



Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

This project continues the renoval of physical barriers to
persons with disabilities within state-owned facilities as
required by Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act,
Public Law 101-336. Fundi ng covers the cost of design,
project admnistration, and construction. Aside from the
| egal requirenents, renoval of physical barriers will negate
the need for tenporary program nodifications which are
currently required of the facilities occupants. Ofice of
Managenent and Budget allocates available funding to the
Departnent of Transportation for state facility ADA conpliance
projects based upon DOI’'s prioritized project |ist. The
request ed FY2002 funds will continue work on the Wod Center
i n Fairbanks.

On- goi ng proj ect

M. N zich stated that continuing efforts are being nade to
renovate and renodel state facilities, based on a Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities priority list. He stated FY 01
funds went toward the University of Al aska Fairbanks Wod Center,
and FY 02 funds would conplete the Center’s work including the
installation of an elevator. He stated that additionally, FY 02
funds woul d be used to upgrade the physical education facility at
University of Al aska Anchorage.

Co-Chair Kelly questioned how the el evator being installed at the
Wod Center could also serve Constitutional Hall at the Canpus
conpl ex, as they are not connected.

M. N zich stated that the el evator placenent information supplied
to himmust be incorrect.

Co-Chair Kelly acknow edged that the Departnent is working toward
fulfilling a federal nmandate, and inquired as to when these
appropriation requests mght end. He asked if the projects
specified on the backup information had been conpl et ed.

M. N zich replied that sone of the projects had been conpl et ed.
Co-Chair Kelly stated that between $250,000 and $500, 000 has been
spent on conpliance upgrades for approximtely seven years. He
asked if there is a plan with the status of these projects.

M. N zich coomented that the only plan is the Departnent of

Transportation and Public Facilities priority list that is included
with this request.

SFC-01 (21) 03/07/01



Co-Chair Kelly clarified that the Iist contains projects yet to be
done.

M. N zich responded that is correct.

Co-Chair Kelly replied that he thought this was a |list of conpleted
proj ects.

M. N zich explained that the years in the left hand colum
i ndicate the project was done in that particular year; if there is
no year in the left hand columm, that project is yet to be done. He
infornmed that projects are prioritized by a point system

M. N zich stated the list could be presented a different way if
the Conmttee refers.

Co-Chair Kelly responded that the list is fine as presented.

Senator Hoffman noted if projects are assigned priority using a
poi nt system then the higher the points the higher the priority.
He stated that some high priority projects appeared to have been
“ski pped over” and asked why that occurs.

M. Nizich responded the Departnent follows the priority rating
system to a degree; however, if the Departnent is working on a
particular project and there is noney |eft over when that project
is done, the “Departnment will look at the list and pick another
project they can acconplish with those | eftover funds.”

Senator Green inquired if the state is held to the sane standards
as private business in that it cannot do significant interior
renodel ing without addressing the Anericans Wth Disabilities Act
( ADA) .

M. Nizich responded that if a renpdel project is done, the state
is obligated to nake sure that ADA requirenents are covered in that
proj ect.

Senator Green clarified that the ADA applies to state facilities.

M. N zich responded that it does.

Senator Green expressed that ADA requirenents beconme a critica
part of the decision maki ng when addressi ng these projects.

Senat or Austerman asked what M. N zich about noving this project

out of the governor’s budget and into the Departnent of Fish and
Ganme budget .

SFC-01 (22) 03/07/01



M. N zich responded that the reason the funding is in the
governor’s budget is because federal legislation dictates that is
where it should be received by the states of Al aska, California and
Texas. He continued that the governor’s office would have to
adm ni ster a Rei nbursable Services Agreenent (RSA) to nove this
funding fromthe governor’s office to the Departnent of Fish and
Gane.

Co-Chair Kelly commented that once these funds are received, they
coul d be noved every year.

Departnent of Labor

Hone Modification for Individuals wwth Disabilities

$150, 000 Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC) Divi dend

Ref erence No.: 33945

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Project Type: Health and Safety

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Services

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

This funding will be used for individuals who need hone
nodi fications as part of their Individual Plan for Enploynent
(IPE). The services included on the | PE are needed to assi st
the individual to get a job.

On- goi ng proj ect

REMOND HENDERSON, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Department of Labor and W rkforce Developnent, inforned the
Comm ttee these funds are used for individuals classified as nost
severely disabled with “serious chronic limtations in two or nore
functional capacity areas and need at |east two core vocationa
rehabilitation services over a period of at least 6 nonths.” He
detail ed the funding history and expenditures.

Senat or Green asked if these projects “tie into the mni grants”
that conme through the Departnent of Health and Social Services
devel opnment al | y di sabl ed funds.

M . Henderson responded t hese are stand-al one requests.

Senator Leman inquired if there is a proposed switch in funding for
this project.

M. Henderson replied that the funding would swtch to a general
fund request in FY 03, FY 04, FY 05 and FY 06 and the request woul d

SFC-01 (23) 03/07/01



i ncrease to $250, 000.

Senator Leman asked why these funding requests would switch from
AHFG t o general funds.

M. Henderson said that the Ofice of Managenent and Budget nade
this decision because they were | ooking at the anount of dividends
that m ght be available to the Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporati on.

Senat or Leman requested the Departnment to take another |ook at
future funding.

Co-Chair Kelly stated that perhaps the funding switched at this
point in time because the AHFC dividend is not “guaranteed to
al ways be avail able.”

Assi stive Technol ogy Loan Fund

$100, 000 General Fund

Ref erence No.: 33944

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Health and Safety

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/30/2002

State funds are requested to supplenment the federal funds in
the Assistive Technol ogy Loan Fund (ATLF). This wll allow
the ATLF to continue its collaboration with the banking

partner(s) provi di ng assi stance to i ndi vi dual s wth
disabilities in need of I|oans for assistive technology
devi ces. The ATFC was created to allow individuals wth

disabilities greater access to assistive technol ogy devi ces.
The equi pnent or device purchased enables the individuals to
mai ntai n enpl oynent or to |ive nore independently.

One-tinme project

M. Henderson stated this program was established with federal
funds and the programis set up to allow qualifying individuals to
apply for comercial |oans from banks that are subsidized or the
noney is used to guarantee up to 9 percent of the |loan. He detail ed
the criteria used for determning eligibility for the loan. He
noted that the criteria would not allow for coverage of technol ogy
that is covered by Medicaid or Medicare.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if this project serves the sanme popul ation as
the prior project, reference # 33945.

M. Henderson responded that it does not, as the Hone Mdifications

SFC-01 (24) 03/07/01



for Individuals with Disabilities covered people who are nost
severely disabled while this request covers both disabled and
severely disabl ed.

Co-Chair Kelly asked what the | oan average is per year.

M . Henderson stated that the average | oan anount is approxi mately
$21,000. He continued that during the program s existence, the
total anmount that has been guaranteed is $222,000 with an average
interest rate of 5.56 percent.

Co-Chair Kelly asked when the programwas started.

M . Henderson said the program began in 1997.

Department of Health and Social Services

Def erred Mai nt enance, Renewal, Replacenent, and Equi pnent
$1, 352, 000
$352, 000 Federal Receipts
$1, 000, 000 CGeneral Fund
Ref erence No.: 31862
AP/ AL:  Appropriation
Project Type: Deferred Miintenance
Category: Health/ Safety
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006
Funds deferred mai ntenance at 35 state-owned buildings with a

repl acenent value of $224.3 nmillion, along with selected
| eased facilities, including wurgent imediate repair,
renovati on and equi pnent needs. Delay in funding will cause

additional deterioration of the Departnent’s facilities.
Urgent repairs and deferred maintenance cannot be del ayed
continually wthout adversely affecting the State’ s investnent
inits facilities.

On- goi ng project

JANET CLARKE, Director, Dvision of Admnistrative Services,
Department of Health and Social Services inforned the Committee
this is an annual deferred naintenance/replacenent request. She
detailed the projects that have been identified and referred the
Comm ttee nenbers to the list of specific projects included in the
request, and noted the inclusion of photographs of various
projects. She informed the Commttee the projects have been
prioritized by life/health safety, building integrity, code
conpliance or m ssion deficiencies.

SFC-01 (25) 03/07/01



Ms. Cl arke explained a few of the phot ographs.

Senator Austerman asked how the funding for the projects was
prioritized.

Ms. Clarke responded that the projects are presented in the order
the Departnment would |ike themrepaired, and noted there is not a
picture of every project. She remarked that this funding request
woul d not cover every project on the |ist.

Co-Chair Kelly asked which projects would be funded.
Ms. Clarke specified the cutoff point on the list of projects.

Co-Chair Kelly noted these projects nmet the established criteria
and asked about the projects that were not going to be funded.

Ms. Clarke responded that the Departnment had significant deferred
mai nt enance needs in its facilities and “they just can't get to
themall.”

Ms. Clarke stated that the photographs reflect the true state of
the facilities and infornmed that all facilities are reviewed in
order to determine the npbst pressing needs. She expressed the
Department has not received enough noney to deal with all the
deferred mai ntenance issues so the “backl og keeps building.” She
comented the “Departnent would like to do nore, but can only do
what the | egislature approves.”

Co-Chair Kelly asked how the pictures correspond to the projects.

Ms. Clarke informed, for instance, that photograph 19 depicted the
carpet at the MlLaughlin Youth Center, the last of the projects
these funds would cover. She conmented that although carpet
repl acenent does not appear to be a life/health issue it is when
there are “a lot of juveniles in a 24-hour facility” and liability
i ssues enter the situation.

Senator Leman observed this list of itenms contains things that
coul d be considered to be routine nai ntenance. He cited that boiler
repl acenment and roof repairs “should be done on an ongoi ng basis.”
He questioned why these types of projects appear on this |ist.

Ms. Carke replied that this is the result of the Departnment having
“very little discretionary noney;” a situation that does not permt
the Departnent to performroutine ongoi ng nmai nt enance.

Al aska Psychiatric Institute Replacenent

SFC-01 (26) 03/07/01



$36, 550, 000 Lease Bond

Ref erence No.: AMD34884

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Construction

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Anchorage Areaw de

El ection District: Anchorage Areaw de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

The Al aska Psychiatric Institute has reached the end of its
useful life, is filled with hazardous asbestos, and nust be
replaced. This appropriation will provide the remnaining funds
of $36, 550, 000 necessary to conplete construction of the new
Al aska Psychiatric Institute facility.

Ms. Clarke noted this is an anendnent and is for information only
regarding a project the governor’s office has put forward to
repl ace the Al aska Psychiatric Institute (APlI). She informed this
request is related to SB 96.

Co-Chair Kelly comented that further discussion regarding API
woul d take place when the Commttee receives SB 96.

Senator Austerman asked if there is legislation that reflects this
anount of noney.

Co-Chair Kelly commented that there is a bond authorization.

Public Health Nurse, Probation Oficer, Social Wrker Safety
and Support Equi pnent
$2, 831, 000

$2, 331, 000 Federal Receipts

$500, 000 General Fund
Ref erence No.: 32446
AP/ AL: Appropriation
Proj ect Type: Equi pnent
Category: Health/Safety
Location: Statew de
El ection District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006
Project would provide funds for critical equipnment needed by
Departnent to enhance security, inprove programefficiency and
repl ace agi ng or dysfunctional equipnent for the Departnent’s
statew de operations. There is an urgent need for this
equi pnent so that Famly and Youth Service social workers,
Juvenil e Justice detention and probation officers and Public
Heal th nurses can performtheir duties safely and effectively.
Failure to fund sone equi pnment purchases will nean that they
may not be able to do their job or nmay be placed in danger.

SFC-01 (27) 03/07/01



In any case, delays in procurenent of needed equipnent wl|
mean that workers will not be able to do their job as well as
t hey shoul d and coul d.

On- goi ng proj ect

Ms. Clarke informed that Senator Stevens secured $2.2 mllion in
federal funds to provide additional equipnent for the health
| aboratory that recently opened in Anchorage. She continued that
many of the equi pment budgets within the Departnent have not been
adequately funded to deal with safety issues, ongoi ng
transportati on needs, and clinical equipnment. She noted that mnuch
of the back up information in this request deals with vehicles and
a shortage of vehicles for field staff. She infornmed the Commttee
that the Departnment has done a vehicle analysis to see what the
staff-vehicle ratio is in a nunber of areas. She said the results
indicated the area of need is in the “direct field staff.”

SFC 01 # 33, Side A 10:41 AM

Ms. Clarke noted there is a 12.6 staff person to one vehicle ratio
in the Anchorage area, and that this information is summari zed on
page 14 of the hand out. She stressed this is a serious problem
when staff needs to conduct hone visits or go to court or other
situations as they occur. She stated liability issues occur when
staff uses their own vehicle on state business. She said this
request woul d add three vehicles in the Anchorage area, and noted
simlar problens in other areas of the state.

Ms. O arke stated that the Juvenile Justice D vision portion of the
request relates to safety-security inprovenents. She inforned that
in many of the Departnent’s “small non-urban” area offices, there
are security concerns. She inforned that the Departnent plans to
build access control security barriers in those offices. She
referred to the back up information on page 14.

Ms. Clarke continued that page 15 states the need again for
addi ti onal vehicles for public health nurses. She noted, while the
staff to vehicle ratio was lower in this field, the vehicles were
old and in need of replacenent.

Ms. Clarke stressed the need for state vehicle reliability as it
affects liability concerns.

Senat or Lenman commented the average cost for each of these vehicles
appears to be $29,000, and they are probably 4-wheel drive.

SFC-01 (28) 03/07/01



Ms. Clarke that is correct.

Senat or Leman asked if the Departnment has | ooked at other options
such as previously owed vehicles to lower this cost.

Ms. O arke responded that a used vehicle would be cheaper, however,
if one looks at the state equi pment fleet fund, $29,000 “is what
vehicles cost.” She commented that purchases of this type are
usual | y handl ed through the state equi pnent fleet. She continued it
is possible to go out and | ease a vehicle, but it would then have
to be included as an ongoing cost in the operating budget. She
noted the Departnment “has not been successful in getting operating
funds for ongoing | ease costs.”

AT EASE 10:44 AM/ 10: 45 AM

Juneau Public Health Center Heating and Ventil ation Upgrades
$585, 400

$105, 400 Federal Receipts

$480, 000 General Fund
Ref erence No.: 32451
AP/ AL: Appropriation
Proj ect Type: Deferred M ntenance
Category: Health/ Safety
Location: Sout heast Al aska
Election District: Districts 1-6
Purchase and installation of new heating and ventilation
(HVAC) system at the Juneau Public Health Center (JPHC) to
bring the systemup to code, and to increase energy efficiency
and patient and staff safety. For the State to continue to
i gnore the HVAC problens risks an interruption of services to
t he public.
One-tinme project

Ms. Clarke commented this request had been submtted the prior
fiscal year, but had not been funded; therefore, it is being
submtted again this year with nore detailed information about the
problens the building is experiencing. Ms. Carke informed the
Commttee this building was built in 1984 as a doctor’s office, and
was in foreclosure when the state purchased it in 1992, enabling
the state to obtain it at a good price. She noted that the state
renodeled it after the purchase; however, the heating and
ventil ation system were never upgraded to neet the denmands of the
facility. She comrented that this request would also bring the
building up to ADA code. She referred to several photographs of the
equi pnent currently in the building that needs to be repl aced.

Residential Child Care Facility Capital Needs Assessnent and

SFC-01 (29) 03/07/01



Grant Program
$500, 000
$349, 800 AHFC Di vi dend
$150, 200 General Fund
Ref erence No.: 33815
AP/ AL: Appropriation
Proj ect Type: Renewal and Repl acenent
Cat egory: Health/ Safety
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2007
Provides for a small needs assessnent in FY02 and award of
capital grants in FY02 and beyond for new facilities, deferred
mai nt enance, ADA upgrades, renodeling and equi pnment needs for
in-state residential youth care facilities.
On- goi ng proj ect

Ms. Clarke said this is a new request, and informed that
residential childcare grantees serve over 200 Division of Famly
and Youth Services (DFYS) children, throughout the state, who are
“in state custody and need a higher level of structure and a nore
secure placenent” than is available in the foster hone system She
stated these facilities have not had access to capital funds for a
nunber of years and the Departnment needs to be assured that these
children are in safe and secure facilities. She referred to the
summary of main issues requests fromthe residential group hones
that is included in the backup material (page 21 through page 24).
She noted that $55,000 of this request is earmarked for a capital
needs assessnent. She noted the total of the summary of needs is
double the total of the request, so not all of the projects would
be able to be done.

Senator Austerman inquired how the AHFC dividend is identified in
this request.

Ms. Clarke responded that in this particular capital budget
request, the governor’s office identified this funding.

Senator Austerman clarified these AHFC di vi dends are receipts that
go into the general fund.

Co-Chair Kelly confirmed that AHFC dividend receipts are general
funds. He opined that the governor is attaching these dividends to
this project because it is a housing project and that is an
appropriate use of these receipts.

Senat or Hof fman comrented on the significant increase in general
fund anpbunts after FY 02 and asked what the Departnment would be

SFC-01 (30) 03/07/01



doing differently.

Ms. O arke responded the increased anobunts are the anticipated
result of the capital needs assessnent.

Enmer gency Medi cal Services Equi pnmrent Grants — Match for Code
Bl ue Project

$533, 400 General Fund match

Ref erence No.: 33797

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Equi pnent

Category: Health/Safety

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

EMS anbul ance and first responder personnel need adequate,
reliabl e energency nedi cal equi pnent and anbul ances to provide
effective life-saving services. Many anbul ances and EMS
equi pnent were purchased with federal grants in the late
1970's and early 1980’s. These vehicles and equi prent nust be
repl aced. Under a grant program adm nistered by the US
Department of Agriculture (USDA), up to 75% of the cost of
anbul ances and nedi cal equi pnent can be provided to
comunities who neet certain financial eligibility criteria.
This request would furnish the remining amounts needed as
“mat ching funds.”

Phased proj ect

MATT ANDERSON, Energency Medical Services Unit Manager, Comrunity
Heal th Program Departnent of Health and Social Services, inforned
the Commttee that this project started several years ago, and its
purpose is to quantify and identify the unnet needs for essenti al
energency nedical services (EMS) equipnent in rural Al aska. He
stated this information has been put in a database to prioritize
and seek funding for those needs. He noted that several different
potential funding sources have been identified and this request
specifically would provide matching funds for a United States
Department of Agriculture (USDA) federal grant. He detailed the
process of applying for this application and that the Departnent
has worked with local EMS offices to identify and prioritize the
needs. He specified that the equipnent needs were broken into
various categories and the total package of needs is approximtely
$7 mllion with $3 mllion of this eligible for the USDA grant
project. He specified that the state nmatch required is $1.6 mllion
dol | ars.

Senat or Austerman asked why the USDG grant-funding portion was not
included in the total funds for this request.

SFC-01 (31) 03/07/01



Ms. O arke responded that in this particular case the federal funds
woul d not be comi ng through the state but would be going directly
to the EMS;, therefore they are not reflected in the request.

Senat or Lenman asked if sonme of the existing equi pment schedul ed for
replacenent could be reallocated to “snaller, |ower volune
comunities.”

M. Anderson stated that the EMS council is “very resourceful in
doing this;” however it should be noted that 41 of 125 anbul ances
are nore that 15 years old, and sonetinmes these ol der vehicles end
up in communities “that don’t have the necessary infrastructure to
take care of the vehicle.” He stressed that the council strives to
get only “very reliable equipnment” reallocated to snaller
comunities because of the naintenance situation.

Senat or Leman congratul ated the EMS council on their reallocation
met hodol ogy, and suggested that state departnents could consider
“shifting vehicles around.”

M. Anderson stressed how inportant it is to “ match the equi pnent
to the community” and exanpled that it would be inappropriate to
send an el aborate $150, 000 anbul ance to a snmall vol unme community.

Ms. Clarke stated the Departnent has reallocated old trooper
vehi cl es.

AT EASE 11: 01 AM/ 11:03 AM
[Audio difficulty. The remai nder of the neeting was not recorded]

Al aska Psychiatric Institute Stop-Gs Repairs

$379, 500 General Fund/ Mental Health (GF/ M)

Ref erence No.: 33682

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Deferred M ntenance

Cat egory: Health/ Safety

Location: Anchorage Areaw de

Election District: Anchorage Areaw de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

This is the Alaska Psychiatric Institute’s (API’s) annual
“stop gap” facility mai ntenance and repair request, as well as
a request for the funds to continue to make the fire/life
safety upgrades at APl necessary to neet mninmal occupancy
standards. As long as the Departnent’s plan to vacate the
current facility is delayed, stop gap funds will be necessary.
On- goi ng proj ect

SFC-01 (32) 03/07/01



Ms. Clarke noted this project has been funded for the last ten
years, and the Departnent w shed to naintain operations as |ong as
possi bl e.

Vs

Housi ng Modifications for Trust Beneficiaries and People with
Disabilities
$250, 000

$100, 000 AHFC Di vi dend

$150, 000 Mental Health Trust Settlenment |ncome (MHTAAR)
Ref erence No.: 33671
AP/ AL: Appropriation
Proj ect Type: Renovation and Renodel ing
Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Services
Location: Statew de
El ection District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2004
Provides housing nodifications to persons experiencing a
disability, allowng them to remain in their honmes and
reduci ng the potential cost of providing supported housing.

Clarke pointed out that this project differs from the

Debartnent of Labor and Workforce Devel opnment request due to the
different clients served.

Subst ance Abuse Treatnent for Rural Wnen with Children
$500, 000

$250, 000 G-/ MH

$250, 000 MHTAAR
Ref erence No.: 33832
AP/ AL:  Appropriation
Project Type: Health and Safety
Category: Health/ Safety
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2004
This capital request facilitates the devel opnent of substance
abuse treatnment for rural wonen wth children. These
facilities often have specialized building requirenents to
accomodate children as part of the treatnment conponent.
Wnmen with children often do not enter treatnent if they
believe their children are not safe or that they will |ose
custody of their children. The ability to bring their
children with themallows these wonen to conmit to treatnent
W thout the disruption of worries about their children' s
health and safety, or by the pain of separation fromthem
One-tinme project

SFC-01 (33) 03/07/01



Ms. Clarke explained this project is to build treatnent facilities
for wonen with children fromrural Al aska. She shared that these
wonen need to be treated with discretion, and that these wonen
respond better when their children are with them

Def erred Mai ntenance, Americans with Disabilities |Inprovenents
to Service Providers for Beneficiaries, People wth
Disabilities
$800, 000

$400, 000 G-/ MH

$400, 000 MHTAAR
Ref erence No.: AMD33670
AP/ AL:  Appropriation
Project Type: Deferred Miintenance
Category: Health/ Safety
Location: Statew de
Election District: Statew de
Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2007
This program wll provide capital grants for deferred
mai nt enance, renovation, and Americans with Disabilities Act
conpliance of existing structures for agencies providing
prograns, services, and activities for Mental Health Trust
beneficiaries and people wth disabilities. Appr oxi mat el y
$450.0 of the available funds will be restricted to agencies
providing chem cal dependency treat nent services for
individuals and famlies. The program scope as determ ned by
the Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority limts projects to
rural Al aska only.
On- goi ng proj ect
Amendmnent
Mental Health Bill

Ms. O arke described the clients served by this project and the
mai nt enance and access i nprovenents.

Sui ci de Prevention and Gal ena Mental Health Center

$925, 000 G~/ MH

Ref erence No.: AMD34882

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Construction

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

The suicide rate in Alaska is alarmng - nore than tw ce the
nati onal average. W need to act inmediately to support the
regions in nost distress and begin a process leading to a
conprehensi ve suicide prevention plan for all Al aska.

SFC-01 (34) 03/07/01



One-tinme project
Amendnent
Mental Health Bill

Ms. darke cited concerns with the nunber of suicides in the state.
She said these funds would address this issue in communities by
provi ding techni cal support and training. She added that a portion
of the funds would be used to replace the current nental health
facility in Galena. She detailed the nmultitude of problens with
this trailer-type facility.

Senat or Aust erman asked why Gal ena was sel ect ed.

Ms. Clarke replied that the nental health board selected the site
as part of its efforts to identify the small comunities in nost
need.

Senat or Leman asked if the new building s | ocation would be above
fl ood stage.

Ms. Clarke replied that is the understanding.

Senator Lenman asked if the air force facilities in Gal ena woul d be
cl osed.

Ms. Clarke replied she would check with the city of Gal ena.

Devel opnental Disabilities Systens ReformiInitiative

$750, 000 G-/ MH

Ref erence No.: AMD34885

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Health and Safety

Cat egory: Housi ng/ Soci al Services

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

Al aska’s rank in community services fiscal effort (spending
for services per $1,000 of total state personal incone) has
declined steadily from 14" in 1977 to 31% in 1998. Many of
the nost common initiatives for reducing state wait lists are
ei ther underway or are no |longer available in Alaska. This
situation cannot conti nue.

One-tinme project

Ms. Carke indicated that the Departnent has done a great job in
getting people off of Medicaid; however, insufficient funding may
not provi de enough cash flow to assist people still on the waitlist
for community services. She informed that procedures have been

SFC-01 (35) 03/07/01



established to lower billing errors in Medicaid and elimnate
duplication. She stated that non-profit entities that have relied
on grants now rely on third party billing by Medicaid; however they
have not been given the tools to use this new systemeffectively.
She stated this project would provide the tools to assist the
grantees so they can be sol vent.

Program Equi pnrent Gants to Service Providers for Trust
Beneficiaries and People with Disabilities

$250, 000 MHTAAR

Ref erence No.: 33672

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Equi pnent

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

El ection District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2007

This capital project will support conpetitive capital grant
funding to allow providers to neet programfacility equi pnent
needs for beneficiary service providers and providers for
people wth physical disabilities. Proposals w il be
solicited fromservice providers to inprove operations through
i nproved efficiency.

On- goi ng proj ect

Mental Health bil

Ms. Clarke informed the Commttee this project is funded by the
Mental Health Trust Authority.

Recovery Canp

$100, 000 MHTAAR

Ref erence No.: 33677

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Construction

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2004

This project funds the capital portion of the Famly Recovery
Canp Devel opnent Project. It is designed to replicate the
success of culturally based famly treatnent that has been
provided at Ad Mnto Spirit Canp for a nunber of years.
These replications will occur in other regions of the state.
FY2001 is year one of a three-year project.

On- goi ng project

Mental Health Bill

Ms. Clarke noted that this project would be helpful in rural

SFC-01 (36) 03/07/01



Al aska.

Hearing Screeni ng Assistive Technol ogy

$100, 000 MHTAAR

Ref erence No.: 34044

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Equi pnent

Category: Health/Safety

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

Provi des funds to purchase a |limted nunber of high-end (cost-
w se) hearing devices for loan to famlies of infants and
t oddl ers di agnosed as hard of heari ng.

One-tinme project

Mental Health Bill

Ms. Carke inforned the Committee that this project is specifically
for costly digital hearing devises and stressed that, “typically,
i nsurance does not cover these costs.” She noted it is inportant
for infants and young children to have their hearing issues
addressed early. She stated this programall ows for hearing devices
to be loaned for a six-nonth period to allow for famlies and young
children to have an early adjustnent period during which they woul d
work wi th audi ol ogi st to assess the child' s situation.

Consuner Designed and Managed Projects

$175, 000 MHTAAR

Ref erence No.: 34042

AP/ AL: Appropriation

Proj ect Type: Construction

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

As consuners’ involvenent and control over service delivery
strengt hens, the opportunity for consuners to do the sane in
the area of capital projects is appropriate. Several consuner
groups nmade such proposals.

One-tinme project

Mental Health Bill

Ms. Clarke stated this project would assist those with nental
illness.

M cro Enterprise Funds

$150, 000 MHTAAR
Ref erence No.: 34043

SFC-01 (37) 03/07/01



Ms.

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Equi pnent

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

Provides funds to purchase start-up equi pnment and worKking
capital for beneficiaries who want to be sel f-enployed; for
service providers to establish small businesses to enploy
beneficiaries and for private enterprises interested in
expanding their busi nesses in exchange for hiring
benefi ci ari es.

One-tinme project

Mental Health Bill

Provi der Resource Sharing and Coordi nation

$150, 000 MHTAAR

Ref erence No.: 34039

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Planning

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Statew de

Election District: Statew de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

Provides funds for a five-year <capital initiative to
reengi neer the way the State awards funds to providers and the
way providers conduct business, including coordination and
resource sharing, allowing themto focus on providing services
for individuals and famlies.

On- goi ng proj ect

Mental Health Bill

Clarke said these two projects look “at all the ways”

individuals with disabilities could conduct a busi ness. She stated
that the programwoul d hel p streamine the ways that grant dollars
becone avail abl e.

IMH Urban Transition Housing Facility

$200, 000 MHTAAR

Ref erence No.: AMD34041

AP/ AL:  Appropriation

Project Type: Transitional

Category: Health/ Safety

Location: Anchorage Areaw de

El ection District: Anchorage Areaw de

Estimated Project Dates: 07/01/2001 - 06/ 30/ 2006

This project would | everage renovati on and purchase costs for
a transitional housing facility for the clients of wurban

SFC-01 (38) 03/07/01



nonprofit organizations.
One-tinme project

Ms. Clarke stated this project would provide housing for people
with nental disabilities.
#

ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 11:22 AM

SFC-01 (39) 03/07/01



